WHITE SHOAL LIGHTHOUSE
NW of Waugoshance Island, Lake Michigan

Emmet County, Michigan




White Shoal Lighthouse

.-a .-

S
michlgan e o T
Lighthouse R T L

Conseruancg

‘Tower with the bands painted on it. The photo on the left side of the pae is

WHITE SHOAL LIGHT without the bands as originally buie

State: MICHIGAN . - Deserin
Location: NW OF WAUGOSHANCE ISLAND/LAKE MICHIGAN escription: LIGHTSHIP NO. 56
Tate/Disposition;

Nearest City: MACKINAW CITY

US.CG, Distrt: Modem Tower? NO

Year Station Established: 1891 Existing Sound Signal Building? NO

Existing Historic Tower: * Fog Signal Type: DIAPHONE
* Year Light First Lit: 1910 Existing Keepers Quarters? YES

» Is the Light Operational? YES * Year Constructed: 1910
* Date Deactivated: N/A * Number of Stories:
* Automated: 1976 * Archite ;
* Foundation Materials: TIMBER CRIB/CONCRETE PIER . Commf:;:;l ;I?;:: nﬁ%%% TOTOWER
« Construction Materials: TERRA COTTA/STEEL W/BRICK
LINING Other Structures: NONE
* Markings/Patterns: WHITE/ORIG, RED AND WHITE
SPIRAL BANDS Current Use: ACTIVE AID TO NAVIGATION
* Shape: CONICAL
« Relationship t Dther Structures: INTEGRAL Owner/Manager: U.S. COAST GUARD
* Tower Height: 121 "
* Original Opiic: SECOND ORDER, FRESNEL Open to the Public? NO
* Year Original Lens Installed: Web Site:
s Present Optic: 190 MM .
.. * Year Present Lens Installed: National Register Status: LISTED Reference #84001391
“- « Height of Focal Plane: 125 Name of Listing: WHITE SHOAL LIGHT STATION (U.S. COAST
* TFresnel Lens Disposition: ON DISPLAY AT MUSEUM AT GUARD/GREAT LAKES
WHITEFISH POINT LIGHTHOUSE, MI TR} On State LJstlInventory‘? NO; Year Listed:

* Has fewer been moved? NO
M iscellaneous: ONE OF FIRST THRER LIGHTSHIP STATIONS

Previous Tower(s): IN GREAT LAKES; CONSTRUCTION WAS MAJOR
1. Consiruction Date: 1891 ENGINEERING FYEAT BECAUSE OF ISOLATED LOCATION:
ONLY RED/WHITE BARBER POLE STRIPED IN U.S.
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White Shoal, MI

: * Waugoshance Lighthouse was established in
. 1851 to help mark the entrance to Lake Michigan from the
 Straits of Mackinac, but navigational hazards lurked unseen
...+ in the waters north of the lighthouse. Four-and-a-half miles

. northwest of Waugoshance Lighthouse lies White Shaoal,
covered by just five feet of water, and another five miles
horthwest of White Shoal is Simmons Reef just three feet
beneath the surface of the lake.

The wooden crib was to;avd t White Shoal hytﬁe
tughMorford and then sunk using stone from the
barge Gilfenand the steamer Progress.

Congress appropriated $60,000 for a lighthouse on Simmons
Reef on March 2, 1889, but 5 survey of the reef conducted that
year showed that a structure on the exposed location could
.- hot be built for less than $150,000. The Lighthouse Board
~irequested an additional $90,000 for the project, but in order to
more immediately serve mariners, the board also
recommended that the $60,000 already approved be used to
construct three lightships to mark Simmons Reef, White
Shoal, and Grays Reef. Congress approved this reallocation of
funds on March 3, 1891, and three 100-foot-fong, wooden-
hulled lightships, equipped with steam propulsion and a fog
signal, were built that year by the Blythe Craig Shipbuilding
- Company of Toledo, Ohio. After sea frials were conducted
and defects corrected, the three lightships were taken in tow
by the tender Dahliz and placed on their respective stations
“on October 24, 1891,

LV-535 served on Simmons Reef through 1900, with Samuel
Dodd serving as its master for fifteen years. Captain Dodd
capsized in a small boat near the lightship in 1894 and was in
the water for three hours before being rescued by the
schooner City of Sheboygan. At the opening of the 1801
shipping season, a buoy was placed on Simmons Reef, and
LV-55 was assigned to Lansing Shoal.

On March 4, 1907, Congress appropriated $250,000 for a light
. 15
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"and fog signal to replace lightship LV-56 serving at White

;. Shoal. Aiter plans were drawn up, the project was put outto ¢rjh 72 feet square and 18 feet 6 inches high

bid, and a $93,785.60 contract was awarded to Gillen

Construction Company of Milwaukee, the lowest bidder for

the foundation.

The following detailed description of the lighthouse was

provided in the 1912 Annual Report of the Commissioner of

Lighthiouses:

Furpose.—White Shoal Light Siation was
established for the reason that a more efficient
aid to navigation was required to mark the shoal
than the light vessel which it replaced. On
account of ice the vessel was always withdrawn
in the fall before navigation had fully closed and
replaced in the spring after it had opened, so that
the unmarked shoal was a serious menace
during two inclement seasons of the year when
the movement of vessels was at its height. The
light was established September 1 and the fog
signal September 15, 1910, and the submarine
bell September 20, 1911.

Site.—The station is located on the east end of
the shoal, northeasterly end of Lake Michigan
and off the westerly enfrance to the Straits of
Mackinac. The site is submarine, with 22 feet 6
inches depth of water; the surface of the shoal is
practically level and consists of coarse gravel,
the largest pieces not exceeding 4 inches in
diameter. Borings indicate no clay or mud, and
stone or solid bottom was struck at 20 to 23 feet
below the surface.

filled with stone, and supports a reenforced-
concrete pier whose deck is 70 feet square and
20 feet above lake level. The sides of the pier are
battered, with a plain curved molding at the top.
The crib was built on shore, floated out fo the
site, and sunk upon the bottom, which had
previously been covered with a layer of stone 2
feet thick. After the crib was placed, riprap to a

~ depth of 9 feet above bottom and 118 feet square

was deposited about it. The deck of the pier
suppoerts an ornamental cylindrical base for a
conical-shaped tower surmounted by a
cylindrical service room, watch room, and first-
order helical-bar lantern whose focal plane is 105
feet above the deck of the pier. The tower is of
structural steel, hacked with brick and faced with
terra cotta, with certain cast-iron parts and
trimmings and with gallery deck, watch room,
and lantern made of aluminum.

MNuminating apparatus.—Consists of a second-
order flashing lens of two panels each, made up
of 7 refracting and 15 reflecting prisms, roiating
on a mercury float, driven by clockwark, and
giving a white flash every 8 seconds. The
intensity of the light is estimated at 1,200,000
candles, the focal plane is 125 feet above mean
lake level, and the light is visible 20 milesin
clear weather. The light is furnished by a 55~
millimeter doubletank, incandescent oil vapor
famp. The mineral oil is stored in tanks in the
basement of the tower and raised to a tank on
the eighth floor by a suitable pump.

Fog signal.-—The aerial fog signal is a 6-inch
whistie blown by compressed air. The
compressing plant consists of two 24-horsepower
vertical petroleum engines and compressors on
the same bed direct connected to the same shaft,
but are to be replaced next spring by two 40-
horsepower horizontal oif engines and
compressors direct connected on the same bed.
There is also a submarine fog signal consisting of

. a bell mounted on a tripod and located three-
" quarters of a mile northeast of the station in 60

feet of water, The bell is operated by electric
power, the current being transmitted through a
cable from the light station,

Quarters.—There are four keepers at this
station. The tower is 9 stories in height, including
the cellar in the interior of the pier, which
contains the oil tanks. Above this is the first floor,
on level with deck of pier outside, containing
rooms for the fog-signa! machinery, heating
plant, stores, closets, and power baat. On the
sacond floor are tool room, bathroom, and
kitchen storeroom. The third floor contains
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kitchen, living room, and a bedroom; the fourth

floor, two bedrooms, toilet, etc.; the fifth floor, a
bedroom and general sitting room; the sixth and
seventh, one large room each; and the eighth
contains the service room, which is immediately
helow the watch room of the lantern. The stairs

are not cenirally located, but are amply provided

for near the outer walls of the tower. Supplies

are landed directly on the pier from the tender,

and the keepers' power boat is stowed within the -
tower in a corridor on the first floor and the )
rowboat on the pier outside.

Cost.—The station was established under the
act of March 4, 1907, appropriating $250,000. The
total cost was $224,563.83. The crib agd pier were
built under contract, but the tower was
constructed by hired labor and purchase of
material under contract. The work was
commenced in July, 1907, with the survey, and
was practically completed in November, 1911.

‘The
station’s
first keeper
was Ingvald
Olsen, who
was
awarded
the R
lighthouse !
efficiency
pennant for
have the
district’s
model
station in o i
1914. When =
Keeper
Olsen was
transferred
to
Sheboygan
, Wiscensin
in late 1914,
James
Marshall
took charge
of the
station, and
the following year, he and third assistant J.H. Sullivan were
credited with saving the launch /da L during a gale.
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Anearly complete White Sh.r:o':ail ngih(;u‘sé or-1 Od
6, 1910. Note temporary fog betl.

The station’s fog signal was changed from a six-inch to a ten-
inch air whistle on April 22, 1914, In December 1914, an
auxiliary flashing acetylene winter light was installed to aids
mariners between the time the station closed and the actuatl
close of navigation. The submarine fog signal was
discontinued at the end of the 1916 season, and air hoists
were placed on the station’s three boat cranes in October
1919.
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in 1930, the intensity of White Shoal Light was increased from
360,000 to 3,000,000 candlepower by changing the iliuminant
to electricity.

When originally built, White Shoal Lighthouse had a daymark
described as a white tower with a narrow black band and a
silver-gray lantern, but this was changed in 1927 to a black
tower with a silver-gray lantern. In 1937, the tower was
changed back to white. This photograph, taken In April on
April 6, 1956, shows the distinctive red and white spiral bands
that the tower had received in 1954. On May 28, 1938, the
station’s foy signal was changed to a diaphragm horn
sounding two blasts every forty-five seconds.

White Shoal Lighthouse was automated and its crew removed
in 1976, the same year along the nearby offshore lights at
Lansing Shoal and Grays Reef were de-stafied.

Though a lengthy boat ride is required to get a close-up view
of White Shoal Lighthouse, you can view its beautiful second-
order Fresnel, removed from the tower in 1987, at the Great
Lakes Shipwreck Museum at Whitefish Point. Residents of
Michigan can order license piates featuring the iconic red-
and-white-striped lighthouse set against and blue
background. A portion of the cost of the plates is given to the
Michigan Lighthouse Preservation Grant Fund, which
provides money to support lighthouse groups throughout the
state.

in May 2014, White Shoal Lighthouse, deemed excess by the
Coast Guard, was made available under the guidelines of the
National Historic Lighthouse Preservation Act “to eligible
entities defined as Federal Agencies, state and local
agencies, non-profit corporations, educational agencies, or
community development organizations, for education, park,
recreation, cultural, or historic preservation purposes.” If a
new custodian is not found, the lighthouse will be sold at
auction.

Keepers:

+ Head: James M. Marshall (1910), Ingvald Olsen (1910 -
1914), James M. Marshall (1914 — 1919), William N,
Barnum (1919 — 1929), Frank E. Frederickson (1929 —
1946), George Kelier (1946).

« First Assistant: Frederick W. Ferguson (1910 — 1912),
Paul Johnecheck (1944 ~ 1945).

« Second Assistant: Edward J. Skilling (1916}, H.G. Olsen
{1910 — 1912), Eugene P. Moons { — 1915), James H.
Wehner (1930 — 1937), Paul Johnecheck (1942 — 1944).

« Third Assistant: H.G. Olsen (1910), Johan Olsen (1910),
William C. Mentch {1911), William Gordon {1911),
Eugene P. Moens (1912), John H. Sullivan (1915 -),
John Kracht ( ~ 1916), Frank Pizzala (1916 — ), William
C. Kincaide (1928 - 1933), Lockhart { — 1941}, Thomas J.
Brennan (1941 — 1942), Paul Johnecheck (1942).
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